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Dyess Colony was established in May, 1934, on Mississippi Delta land in
northeast Arkansas. The federal government purchased over 16,000 acres
of "sunken lands" in Mississippi County. After swamps and marshy areas
were drained and most of the trees cleared, the land was suitable for
farming.

Dyess Colony was a planned agricultural community with Dyess Center as
the focal point of this experimental rural rehabilitation project. The
Dyess farmlands were divided into tracts of twenty to forty acres, with
each tract having a house cf three to five rooms. Each tract also
contained a barn and chicken house.

As the name indicates, Dyess Center was located at the center of the
Dyess Colony. The community center area contained numerous facilities
including the administration building, commissary, church, school,
community building, park, swimming ool and residences. Several small
industrial-type operations were also present: grist mill, gin, slaughter
house, lumber yard, and garage. The entire colony was planned by
architect Howard Eichenbaum of Little Rock.

The houses in Dyess Center were like those on each farm in the colony:
one storey white frame with a gable roof and small open porch and
containing three to five rooms (see attached floor plans). Except for
woodwork trim on the porches, the cottage-like houses at Dyess were quite
simple. Many of these original cclony houses are still standing at

Dyess and though some have been altered, many remain unchanged.

The community center, a one storey frame T-shape building, still stands
at the north edge of Dyess Center. It is in fairly good condition and
is now used as a church.

The administration building of Dyess Colony still stands in the center
of the community. The building is of two storey brick construction
with one storey wings extending at the north and south elevations. This
Greek Revival style building features a classic two storey portico

=~ supported by féur sguare wood columns. The Palladian-style entry is
flanked by windows with heads of radiating voussoirs with keystones.
The building, now used for apartments, has been painted white and is
in fair condition.

Though most of the original commercial structures have been destroyed,
both the community and administration buildings remain. Modern
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intrusions are typical of buildings found in any small rural community.
About half of the private residences at Dyess date from the colony
days, and are easily recognizable. In many ways Dyess is a typical
small town in the Mississippi Delta; however, its origin as a planned
rural community is readily apparent.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the early 1930's the United States experienced the worst economic
depression in the Nation's history. Though all Americans were affected
by the "Great Depression", some socio-economic groups suffered more

than others. One such group were the small farmers and tenant farmers
of the rural South.

The Roosevelt Administration recognized the overwhelming conditions of
Southern farmers and made several efforts to aid them. One of the
earliest farmer assistance programs of the New Deal was Dyess Colony.

Established in May, 1934, Dyess Colony was the brainchild of William

Reynolds Dyess. Mr. Dyess, a farmer and contractor, was Arkansas'
=director of both the Federal Emergency Relief Administration and the

Works Progress Administration. Dyess was convinced that the swampy

delta land in the southwest part of Mississippi County, Arkansas, could

be transformed into productive farm land. He conceived the idea of

building an agricultural community on this land, and early in 1934,

submitted his plan to Harry L. Hopkins, Administrator of the F.E.R.A.

Dyess' plan was strongly endorsed by Colonel Lawrence Westbrook, assistant

to Mr. Hopkins, and the colony was approved and funded.

Originally known as "Colonization Project Number 1," Dyess Colony was
first controlled by the Arkansas Rural Rehabilitation Corporation.

This corporation was set up by the Rural Rehabilitation Program of the
Emergency Relief Administration in Arkansas. In 1936 the Resettlement
Administration took over management of the Arkansas Rural Rehabilitation
Corporation. The legal structure of the colony was revised, and Dyess
Colony Corporation was organized. When the Farm Security Adminstration
was established in 1937, it became the third agency to administer Dyess.

Dyess Colony was an experiment in permanent reestablishment of the
independent farmer. Intended as a pioneer effort, the colony was, in
1934, the only purely agricultural rehabilitation colony project in
the country. The government's attempt to resettle destitute but
deserving families at Dyess Colony was a success.

Dyess Colony was established on an almost inaccessible expanse of tree
covered marsh land located in north Arkansas about fifteen miles from
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the Mississippi River. The land cost an average of $2.50 per acre, and
totaled approximately 16,500 acres. About 1,300 persons were employed
in construction of the colony, using lumber cleared from the land.

The first buildings at Dyess were for the workers and consisted of barracks,
a kitchen and dining hall. By mid-June, 1934, a temporary administration
building had been completed, and a month later construction began on 500
houses at the colony. Howard Eichenbaum, a Little Rock architect, designed
the three-, four-, and five-room houses constructed at Dyess. Each

house was constructed on an individual twenty-to forty-acre farm.

Though of simple design, each house met the demands of farm living. Some
twenty variations of the basic floor plans helped eliminate the monotony.
Each of the Dyess houses had a well and was wired for electricity. In
addition to other outbuildings, each farm had a barn and chicken house.

All the barns were of similar design, being about sixteen by twenty-four
feet with ten foot shed on either side.

The formal dedication of Dyess Colony came on May 22, 1936, the second
anniversary of the colony. In that year 482 families lived at Dyess,

and 4,875 acres had been planted. By January, 1938, the Colony was on

a sound basis. Sixty miles of gravel roads and ninety miles of drainage
canals had been constructed, and a spur from the Frisco Railroad extended
twelve miles to the colony. Dyess Center, the actual heart of the farm
colony, contained a number of buildings, including a commissary, canning
center, community building, school, hospital, cotton gin, feed mill,

post office and even a motion picture theatre. The most prominent
structure, then and now, was the two storey Greek Revival style administra-
tion building.

The only colonists accepted at Dyess were experienced farmers who had
lost their farms in the economic depression. In addition, each farmer
had to be under fifty years old, in good health, a resident of Arkansas,
and Caucasion. The first year at the colony was a trial period for
each family, after which they were evaluated by the farm agent and home
economist. By 1938 some 115 families had earned deeds to their farms
and 300 others had completed the one year trial and been recommended
for retention as colonists.

Although Dyess was not a communal settlement, the colonists did work
together on several activities, including the Dyess Theatre, twenty-
acre school farm, and joint marketing of truck products. The cotton
gin, run by cooperative methods, also provided employment for settlers.
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January, 1939, marked the completion of Dyess Colony. After that date
recruitment of new colonists to fill vacant farms stopped. Those farms
not filled were left vacant to allow for the natural expansion of the
community. As federal loans were repaid and the colonists became owners
of their farms, government control of the colony dwindled. Federal
holdings were eventually liquidated, setting Dyess free of any extra
control by the government.

Though Dyess Colony helped no great per cent of the people in Arkansas
or even in Mississippi County, it did help some deserving farmers. This
experimental project provided many impoverished farm families with the
opportunity to build a better life. Even more importantly the success
of Dyess Colony established a precedent after which future farm projects
were modeled.
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Dyess Colony was a national sociological experiment in rural rehabilitation.
The role Dyess played as a model for later resettlement farms made it an
important historic site. Though established less than 50 years ago, Dyess
Colony Center should be listed on the National Register of Historic Places
because of its significance to modern American social and agricultural
history.
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June 4, 1975

Mr. Ed Smith

Department of the Interior

National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
18th and "C" Streets, N.W.
Washington, D. C. 20240

Dear Ed:

Enclosed is the site map you requested on the Dyess Colony Center.
This map was drawn up in the late 1930's, and my designation of
present structures is approximate. The map is an approximate

sketch and is not drawn to scale.

Please contact me if there are any further questions concerning
this nomination.

Sincerely,

@Aa&mo_. kﬂk

Dianna Kirk, Historian
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program
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June 24, 1975

Mr. Ray Luce

Office of Nomination and Review

National Park Service - National Register
Department of the Interior

18th and "C" Streets, N.W.

Washington, D. C. 20240

" Dear Mr. Luce:
Enclosed is the information you requested on why we feel the
50 year limit should be waived in nominating Dyess Colony Center
to the National Register of Historic Places. In addition, please
check paragraph five and the final paragraph in Section 8 of
the original nomination.

Please contact me if there are any further questions.

Sincerely,

IZU”V'ﬂ Aﬂ"

Dianna Kirk, Historian
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program
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